



# ORDINANCE

CITY OF DANBURY, STATE OF CONNECTICUT  
CITY COUNCIL

\_\_\_\_\_ A.D. 2012

**Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Danbury:**

THAT Subsection (a) of Section 21-42 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Sec. 21-42. Quarterly non-metered rates.**

- (a) The following are established as the quarterly non-metered rates for the use of water, which rates shall be in effect for all bills rendered on or after July 1, 2012: two hundred seventy nine dollars and twenty two cents (\$279.22)/unit.

**COPY SHOWING DELETIONS AND NEW LANGUAGE.**

THAT Subsection (a) of Section 21-42 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows

**Sec. 21-42. Quarterly non-metered rates.**

- (a) The following are established as the quarterly non-metered rates for the use of water, which rates shall be in effect for all bills rendered on or after July 1, ~~2012~~ 2010: two hundred SEVENTY NINE ~~sixty-seven~~ dollars and TWENTY TWO ~~eighty-four~~ cents (~~\$267.84~~) (\$279.22) /unit.

Note: New language is indicated by **CAPITALIZATION COMBINED WITH UNDERLINING** except that capitalization is not utilized for the letters in parenthesis which indicate subsections.

Deleted language is indicated ~~strikeouts~~.



# ORDINANCE

## CITY OF DANBURY, STATE OF CONNECTICUT CITY COUNCIL

\_\_\_\_\_ A.D. 2012

**Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Danbury:**

THAT Section 21-46 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

### **Sec. 21-46. Meter rates generally.**

(a) The following water meter rates shall be charged for those areas served and specified by the superintendent of public utilities. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012, and are based on the consumption of thousands of gallons (MG) as follows:

(1) 5/8-inch size meter:

<i>Usage (MG)</i>	
0-1.....	\$ 11.93
2.....	13.19
3.....	14.45
4.....	15.72
5.....	16.98
6.....	18.25
7.....	19.52
8.....	20.79
9.....	22.04
10.....	23.31
11.....	24.57
12.....	25.83
13.....	27.11
14.....	28.37
15.....	29.63

(2) 3/4-inch size meter:

<i>Usage (MG)</i>	
0-1.....	\$ 18.54
2.....	19.80
3.....	21.07
4.....	22.33
5.....	23.60
6.....	24.86
7.....	26.14
8.....	27.30
9.....	28.55

10 .....	29.92
11 .....	31.18
12 .....	32.45
13 .....	33.71
14 .....	34.98
15 .....	36.24

(3) 1-inch size meter:

*Usage (MG)*

0-1.....	\$ 38.34
2 .....	39.62
3 .....	40.87
4 .....	42.14
5 .....	43.40
6 .....	44.67
7 .....	45.93
8 .....	47.10
9 .....	48.35
10 .....	49.72
11 .....	50.99
12 .....	52.25
13 .....	53.52
14 .....	54.78
15 .....	56.06

(b) The following water meter rates shall be charged for those areas served and as specified by the superintendent of public utilities. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012 and are limited to the first fifteen thousand (15, 000) gallons of consumption and are based on the consumption per thousand gallons (MG) as follows.

Size of Meter  
(inches)

1 ½ .....	\$ 175.62
2 .....	257.55
3 .....	570.78
4 .....	1,141.42
6 .....	2,282.84
8 .....	4,565.72
10 .....	9,131.41

(c) For water consumed in excess of fifteen thousand (15,000) gallons and less than thirty thousand gallons (30,000) for any size meter the charge shall be three dollars and fifty seven cents (\$3.57) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

(d) (1) For water consumed in excess of thirty thousand (30,000) gallons and less than seventy five thousand (75,000) gallons for any size meter the charge shall be four dollars and twelve cents (\$4.12) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

(2) For water consumed in excess of thirty thousand (30,000) gallons for residential uses for any size meter the charge shall be three dollars and fifty seven cents (\$3.57) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

(e) For water consumed in excess of seventy five thousand (75,000) gallons for any size meter the charge shall be four dollars and sixty four cents (\$4.64) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

**COPY SHOWING DELETIONS AND NEW LANGUAGE.**

THAT Section 21-46 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Sec. 21-46. Meter rates generally.**

(a) The following water meter rates shall be charged for those areas served and specified by the superintendent of public utilities. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012, and are based on the consumption of thousands of gallons (MG) as follows:

(1) 5/8-inch size meter:

<i>Usage (MG)</i>	
0-1.....	\$ <del>11.44</del> <u>11.93</u>
2.....	<del>12.65</del> <u>13.19</u>
3.....	<del>13.86</del> <u>14.45</u>
4.....	<del>15.08</del> <u>15.72</u>
5.....	<del>16.29</del> <u>16.98</u>
6.....	<del>17.51</del> <u>18.25</u>
7.....	<del>18.72</del> <u>19.52</u>
8.....	<del>19.94</del> <u>20.79</u>
9.....	<del>21.14</del> <u>22.04</u>
10.....	<del>22.36</del> <u>23.31</u>
11.....	<del>23.57</del> <u>24.57</u>
12.....	<del>24.78</del> <u>25.83</u>
13.....	<del>26.00</del> <u>27.11</u>
14.....	<del>27.21</del> <u>28.37</u>
15.....	<del>28.42</del> <u>29.63</u>

(2) 3/4-inch size meter:

<i>Usage (MG)</i>	
0-1.....	\$ <del>17.78</del> <u>18.54</u>
2.....	<del>18.99</del> <u>19.80</u>
3.....	<del>20.21</del> <u>21.07</u>
4.....	<del>21.42</del> <u>22.33</u>
5.....	<del>22.64</del> <u>23.60</u>
6.....	<del>23.85</del> <u>24.86</u>
7.....	<del>25.07</del> <u>26.14</u>
8.....	<del>26.19</del> <u>27.30</u>
9.....	<del>27.39</del> <u>28.55</u>
10.....	<del>28.70</del> <u>29.92</u>
11.....	<del>29.94</del> <u>31.18</u>

15-b

12 .....	<del>31.13</del> <u>32.45</u>
13 .....	<del>32.34</del> <u>33.71</u>
14 .....	<del>33.55</del> <u>34.98</u>
15 .....	<del>34.76</del> <u>36.24</u>

(3) 1-inch size meter:

*Usage (MG)*

0-1 .....	\$ <del>36.78</del> <u>38.34</u>
2 .....	<del>38.00</del> <u>39.62</u>
3 .....	<del>39.20</del> <u>40.87</u>
4 .....	<del>40.42</del> <u>42.14</u>
5 .....	<del>41.63</del> <u>43.40</u>
6 .....	<del>42.85</del> <u>44.67</u>
7 .....	<del>44.06</del> <u>45.93</u>
8 .....	<del>45.18</del> <u>47.10</u>
9 .....	<del>46.38</del> <u>48.35</u>
10 .....	<del>47.69</del> <u>49.72</u>
11 .....	<del>48.91</del> <u>50.99</u>
12 .....	<del>50.12</del> <u>52.25</u>
13 .....	<del>51.34</del> <u>53.52</u>
14 .....	<del>52.55</del> <u>54.78</u>
15 .....	<del>53.77</del> <u>56.06</u>

(b) The following water meter rates shall be charged for those areas served and as specified by the superintendent of public utilities. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012 and are limited to the first fifteen thousand (15, 000) gallons of consumption and are based on the consumption per thousand gallons (MG) as follows.

Size of Meter  
(inches)

1 1/2 .....	\$ <del>168.46</del> <u>175.62</u>
2 .....	<del>247.05</del> <u>257.55</u>
3 .....	<del>547.51</del> <u>570.78</u>
4 .....	<del>1,094.89</del> <u>1,141.42</u>
6 .....	<del>2,189.77</del> <u>2,282.84</u>
8 .....	<del>4,379.59</del> <u>4,565.72</u>
10 .....	<del>8,759.15</del> <u>9,131.41</u>

(c) For water consumed in excess of fifteen thousand (15,000) gallons and less than thirty thousand gallons (30,000) for any size meter the charge shall be three dollars and FIFTY SEVEN ~~forty-two cents (\$3.42)~~ (\$3.57) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

(d) (1) For water consumed in excess of thirty thousand (30,000) gallons and less than seventy five thousand (75,000) gallons for any size meter the charge shall be FOUR ~~three~~ dollars and TWELVE ~~ninety five~~ cents (~~\$3.95~~) (\$4.12) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

(2) For water consumed in excess of thirty thousand (30,000) gallons for residential uses for any size meter the charge shall be three dollars and FIFTY SEVEN ~~forty two~~ cents (~~\$3.42~~) (\$3.57) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

(e) For water consumed in excess of seventy five thousand (75,000) gallons for any size meter the charge shall be four dollars and SIXTY FOUR ~~forty five~~ cents (~~\$4.45~~) (\$4.64) per one thousand (1,000) gallons. Such rates are for quarterly billings rendered on or after July 1, 2012.

Note: New language is indicated by CAPITALIZATION COMBINED WITH UNDERLINING except that capitalization is not utilized for the letters in parenthesis which indicate subsections.

Deleted language is indicated ~~strikeouts~~.



# ORDINANCE

CITY OF DANBURY, STATE OF CONNECTICUT

CITY COUNCIL

\_\_\_\_\_ A.D. 2012

**Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Danbury:**

THAT Section 21-47 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Sec. 21-47. Additional rates and charges for special uses.**

In addition to the rates set forth in sections 21-42 and 21-46, the following rates and charges are hereby established for all bills rendered on or after July 1, 2012:

- (1) Hydrant use by contractors, plus an additional \$ 2.76 per one hundred (100) gallons: \$ 550.00
- (2) The following quarterly rates shall be charged for water service to premises for fire protection purposes:

<i>Size of Connection (inches)</i>	<i>Charge for Three Months</i>
4 and under .....	\$154.42
6 .....	289.54
8 .....	424.65
10 .....	579.06
12 .....	772.10

**COPY SHOWING DELETIONS AND NEW LANGUAGE.**

THAT Section 21-47 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Sec. 21-47. Additional rates and charges for special uses.**

In addition to the rates set forth in sections 21-42 and 21-46, the following rates and charges are hereby established for all bills rendered on or after July 1, ~~2010~~2012:

(1) Hydrant use by contractors, plus an additional \$ ~~2.65~~ \$2.76 per one hundred (100) gallons: \$ ~~530.00~~ \$ 550.00

(2) The following quarterly rates shall be charged for water service to premises for fire protection purposes:

<i>Size of Connection (inches)</i>	<i>Charge for Three Months</i>
4 and under .....	\$ <del>148.12</del> <u>154.42</u>
6 .....	<del>277.74</del> <u>289.54</u>
8 .....	<del>407.34</del> <u>424.65</u>
10 .....	<del>555.45</del> <u>579.06</u>
12 .....	<del>740.62</del> <u>772.10</u>

Note: New language is indicated by **CAPITALIZATION COMBINED WITH UNDERLINING** except that capitalization is not utilized for the letters in parenthesis which indicate subsections.

Deleted language is indicated ~~strikeouts~~.



# ORDINANCE

CITY OF DANBURY, STATE OF CONNECTICUT  
CITY COUNCIL

\_\_\_\_\_ A.D. 2012

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Danbury:

THAT Subsection 21-48 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

## Sec. 21-48. Connection charges.

(a) *Connection fee.* If no prior water assessment has been paid on the premises to be connected to the Danbury public water system pursuant to section 21-56 et seq. hereof, then no connection permit shall be issued and no actual connection made until a connection fee is paid to the city according to the following:

- (1) (i) Except as otherwise provided herein, the connection fee for buildings devoted to residential uses shall be one thousand six hundred and sixty dollars (\$1,660.00) per dwelling unit.  
  
(ii) The connection fee for buildings located within the C-CBD zoning district and the Downtown Revitalization Overlay Zone, as specified in the Zoning Regulations, and devoted to residential uses shall be five hundred fifty dollars (\$550.00) per dwelling unit, but in no event shall said connection fee exceed two thousand seven hundred sixty five dollars (\$2,765.00) per building; and
- (2) (i) Except as otherwise provided herein, the connection fee for buildings devoted to either nonresidential or mixed uses shall be as follows:

Building Size (Floor Area s.f.)	Connection Fee
up to 5,000 s.f.	\$ 2,765.00
from 5,001 s.f. to 10,000 s.f.	\$ 11,050.00
from 10,001 s.f. to 25,000 s.f.	\$ 22,100.00
from 25,001 s.f. to 50,000 s.f.	\$ 33,150.00
over 50,000 s.f.	\$ 55,250.00 plus \$105 for each 1,000 s.f. or part thereof over 50,000 s.f.

- (ii) The connection fee for buildings located within the C-CBD zoning district and the Downtown Revitalization Overlay Zone and devoted to either nonresidential or mixed uses shall be as follows:

Building Size (Floor Area s.f.)	Connection Fee
up to 5,000 s.f.	\$ 2,765.00
from 5,001s.f. to 10,000 s.f.	\$ 5,525.00
from 10,001 s.f. to 25,000 s.f.	\$ 11,050.00
from 25,001 s.f. to 75,000 s.f.	\$ 16,580.00
over 75,000 s.f.	\$ 22,100.00

(3) With respect to all new water services requiring a meter exceeding one (1) inch in size and with respect to all changes of property use by a customer that results in the need for a meter exceeding one (1) inch in size, the cost of meter acquisition and installation shall be paid by the customer. Said costs shall be in addition to the connection fees described herein. For purposes of this section, meter acquisition and installation costs shall be set by the Superintendent of Public Utilities and shall be generally equivalent to the cost of equipment, materials and services paid by the city.

Whenever a change in use results in the addition of residential units or the expansion of the floor area of a nonresidential or mixed use, the connection fee associated with said change in use shall be calculated by subtracting the connection fee that would be due hereunder for the old use from the connection fee that would be due hereunder for the new use.

- (b) *Permit.* No permit shall be issued until the applicant has paid a nonrefundable permit fee of two hundred twenty five dollars (\$225.00) to cover administrative costs associated therewith except the permit fee for all properties located in the Downtown Revitalization Overlay Zone shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).
- (c) *Exception.* The foregoing connection fees shall not apply to fire service connections.
- (d) *Refunds.* Such connection fee may be refunded if no actual connect is made prior to the expiration of the connection permit; provided, that a written request for the refund is made within five (5) years of the date on which the permit is issued.
- (e) *Penalty for violation.* Any person violating any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to a fine of not more than one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

**COPY SHOWING DELETIONS AND NEW LANGUAGE.**

THAT Subsection 21-48 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Sec. 21-48. Connection charges.**

(a) *Connection fee.* If no prior water assessment has been paid on the premises to be connected to the Danbury public water system pursuant to section 21-56 et seq. hereof, then no connection permit shall be issued and no actual connection made until a connection fee is paid to the city according to the following:

- (1) (i) Except as otherwise provided herein, the connection fee for buildings devoted to residential uses shall be ONE THOUSAND SIX ~~fifteen~~ hundred SIXTY ~~ninety~~ dollars (~~\$1,590.00~~) (\$1,660.00) per dwelling unit.
- (ii) The connection fee for buildings located within the C-CBD zoning district and the downtown revitalization overlay zone as specified in the zoning regulations, and devoted to residential uses shall be five hundred FIFTY ~~thirty~~ dollars (~~\$530.00~~) (\$550.00) per dwelling unit, but in no event shall said connection fee exceed two thousand SEVEN ~~six~~ hundred SIXTY FIVE ~~fifty~~ dollars (~~\$2,650.00~~) (\$2,765.00) per building; and
- (2) (i) Except as otherwise provided herein, the connection fee for buildings devoted to either nonresidential or mixed uses shall be as follows:

Building Size (Floor Area s.f.)	Connection Fee
up to 5,000 s.f.	\$ <del>2,650.00</del> <u>2,765.00</u>
from 5,001s.f. to 10,000 s.f.	\$ <del>10,600.00</del> <u>11,050.00</u>
from 10,001 s.f. to 25,000 s.f.	\$ <del>21,200.00</del> <u>22,100.00</u>
from 25,001 s.f. to 50,000 s.f.	\$ <del>31,800.00</del> <u>33,150.00</u>
over 50,000 s.f.	\$ <del>53,000.00</del> <u>55,250.</u> plus \$100 <u>\$105</u> for each 1,000 sf or part thereof over 50,000 sf.

(ii) The connection fee for buildings located within the C-CBD zoning district and the downtown revitalization overlay zone and devoted to either nonresidential or mixed uses shall be as follows:

Building Size (Floor Area s.f.)	Connection Fee
up to 5,000 s.f.	\$ <del>2,650.00</del> <u>2,765.00</u>
from 5,001s.f. to 10,000 s.f.	\$ <del>5,300.00</del> <u>5,525.00</u>
from 10,001 s.f. to 25,000 s.f.	\$ <del>10,600.00</del> <u>11,050.00</u>
from 25,001 s.f. to 75,000 s.f.	\$ <del>15,900.00</del> <u>16,580.00</u>
over 75,000 s.f.	\$ <del>21,200.00</del> <u>22,100.00</u>

15

(3) With respect to all new water services requiring a meter exceeding one inch in size and with respect to all changes of property use by a customer that results in the need for a meter exceeding one inch in size, the cost of meter acquisition and installation shall be paid by the customer. Said costs shall be in addition to the connection fees described herein. For purposes of this section, meter acquisition and installation costs shall be set by the Superintendent of Public Utilities and shall be generally equivalent to the cost of equipment, materials and services paid by the city.

Whenever a change in use results in the addition of residential units or the expansion of the floor area of a nonresidential or mixed use, the connection fee associated with said change in use shall be calculated by subtracting the connection fee that would be due hereunder for the old use from the connection fee that would be due hereunder for the new use.

- (b) *Permit.* No permit shall be issued until the applicant has paid a nonrefundable permit fee of two hundred twenty five dollars (\$225.00) to cover administrative costs associated therewith except the permit fee for all properties located in the downtown revitalization overlay zone shall be one hundred dollars (\$100.00).
- (c) *Exception.* The foregoing connection fees shall not apply to fire service connections.
- (d) *Refunds.* Such connection fee may be refunded if no actual connect is made prior to the expiration of the connection permit; provided, that a written request for the refund is made within five (5) years of the date on which the permit is issued.
- (e) *Penalty for violation.* Any person violating any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to a fine of not more than one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

Note: New language is indicated by CAPITALIZATION COMBINED WITH UNDERLINING except that capitalization is not utilized for the letters in parenthesis which indicate subsections.

Deleted language is indicated ~~strikeouts~~.



# ORDINANCE

CITY OF DANBURY, STATE OF CONNECTICUT  
CITY COUNCIL

\_\_\_\_\_ A.D. 2012

**Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Danbury:**

THAT Section 21-49 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

## **Sec. 21-49. Tank truck loads.**

When the superintendent of public utilities determines that water is available for tank truck load sale, water shall be billed at the following rates for all such water purchased on or after July 1, 2012.

	Per truck load
Up to 500 gallons.....	\$ 60.00
from 501 to 1000 gallons.....	\$ 115.00
from 1001 to 3000 gallons.....	\$ 340.00
from 3001 to 5000 gallons.....	\$ 565.00
more than 5000 gallons.....	\$1,125.00

**COPY SHOWING DELETIONS AND NEW LANGUAGE.**

THAT Section 21-49 of the Code of Ordinances of Danbury, Connecticut is hereby amended to read as follows:

**Sec. 21-49. Tank truck loads.**

When the superintendent of public utilities determines that water is available for tank truck load sale, water shall be billed at the following rates for all such water purchased on or after July 1, ~~2010~~ 2012.

	<u>PER TRUCK LOAD</u>	
Up to 500 Gallons.....	\$ <del>55.00</del>	<u>60.00</u>
From 501 to 1000 Gallons.....	\$ <del>110.00</del>	<u>115.00</u>
From 1001 to 3000 Gallons.....	\$ <del>325.00</del>	<u>340.00</u>
From 3001 to 5000 Gallons.....	\$ <del>540.00</del>	<u>565.00</u>
More than 5000 Gallons.....	\$ <del>1,080.00</del>	<u>1,125.00</u>

Note: New language is indicated by **CAPITALIZATION COMBINED WITH UNDERLINING** except that capitalization is not utilized for the letters in parenthesis which indicate subsections.

Deleted language is indicated ~~strikeouts~~.